
To enrich, empower, and enlighten the people of the Warren-Newport Public Library District. — Mission statement 

approved by the Board of Trustees, July 18, 2023. 

224 North O’Plaine Road, Gurnee, Illinois 60031 

847-244-5150     FAX 847-244-3499

www.wnpl.info 

 Warren-Newport Public Library District 

Board of Trustees 

Regular Meeting 
Tuesday, November 19, 2024, 7:00 PM 

McCullough Board Room 

AGENDA 

I. Call to order, roll call and Determination of quorum. {<1}

II. Pledge of Allegiance. {<1}

III. Reading of the Mission Statement. {<1}

IV. Public Comments, Correspondence and Communications. INFORMATION 
{20}

a. Public Comments.

The Board of Trustees allows up to 20 minutes for Public Comment. Individuals 

may introduce themselves and speak on any library issues, not to exceed 3 

minutes. Those who want their remarks to be added to the Board record must 

provide a copy to the Board Secretary prior to speaking.

b. Written:

i. Memoranda from legal counsel, if any.

ii. Other

V. Presentation of Audited Financial Statements by ATA Group LLP for fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2024. ACTION {30} Pg. 6
MOTION: THAT THE BOARD ACCEPT THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR FY ENDED JUNE 30, 2024, AS AUDITED BY ATA GROUP LLP AS 
PRESENTED.

VI. Consent agenda (Any trustee may remove items from the consent agenda for 
separate action by the Board.) ACTION {2}

a. Approval Monthly Financial Statements September 2024

b. Approval of payrolls for October 2024

c. Approval of bills payable for September 2024

d. Patron Suggestions October 2024 pg. 47
e. Approval of Board Policies:

i. 3023 Fines and Fees pg. 49
ii. 3045 The Vault pg. 51
iii. 3063 Unattended Children pg. 52
iv. 3065 Technology Use by the Public pg. 54

f. Approval of Personnel Policy 319 Disability Benefits Plans pg. 57

1



Warren-Newport Public Library District 

Board of Trustees 

Regular Meeting    November 19, 2024 

Agenda page 2 

224 North O’Plaine Road, Gurnee, Illinois 60031 

847-244-5150     FAX 847-244-3499

www.wnpl.info 

Individuals requiring special accommodations as specified by the American with Disabilities Act are requested 

to notify the Library Director at 847-244-5150 ext.3101 at least 48 hours in advance of this meeting date. 

MOTION: THAT THE CONSENT AGENDA BE APPROVED AS 

PRESENTED. 

VII. Item(s) removed from consent agenda, if any. ACTION {5}

VIII. President’s report. INFORMATION {5} pg. 58
IX. Reports of other trustees. INFORMATION {5}

X. Executive Director’s report November 2024. INFORMATION {5} pg. 59
XI. Old Business

a. Bookmobile update. INFORMATION {5}

b. New WNPL website update. INFORMATION {5} pg. 69
c. WNPL Strategic Marketing Plan. INFORMATION {15} pg. 71

XII. New business

a. Secretary’s report. Approval of Minutes Regular Meeting October 15, 2024.

ACTION {5} pg. 75
MOTION: THAT THE BOARD APPROVE THE MINUTES OF

REGULAR MEETING OCTOBER 15, 2024, AS PRESENTED.

b. Reports of Standing Committees: Committee of the Whole November 12,

2024. ACTION {5}

i. Finance pg. 80
ii. Building and Grounds pg. 81
iii. Policy pg. 82
iv. Summary, Personnel and General pg. 83
MOTION: THAT THE BOARD APPROVE THE REPORTS OF

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE NOVEMBER 12, 2024, AS

PRESENTED.

c. Ordinance 2024/2025-5 Annual Levy Ordinance for FY 24-25. ACTION

{10} pg. 85
MOTION: THAT ORDINANCE 2024/2025-5 ANNUAL LEVY FOR FY

2024-2025 BE APPROVED AS PRESENTED.

d. Transfer of funds from Corporate Fund to the Bond Fund. ACTION {5}

MOTION: THAT THE BOARD APPROVE THE TRANSFER OF

$651,125 FROM CORPORATE FUND TO THE BOND FUND AS

PRESENTED.

e. Year-end bonus for staff. ACTION {5}

MOTION: THAT THE BOARD CELEBRATE WNPL’S WONDERFUL

LIBRARY STAFF FOR THEIR SERVICE TO OUR COMMUNITY AND

THAT WE ACKNOWLEDGE THEIR EXCELLENT WORK WITH THE

2

http://www.wnpl.info/


Warren-Newport Public Library District 

Board of Trustees 

Regular Meeting    November 19, 2024 

Agenda page 3 

224 North O’Plaine Road, Gurnee, Illinois 60031 

847-244-5150     FAX 847-244-3499

www.wnpl.info 

Individuals requiring special accommodations as specified by the American with Disabilities Act are requested 

to notify the Library Director at 847-244-5150 ext.3101 at least 48 hours in advance of this meeting date. 

STAFF BONUS INCLUDED IN CURRENT BUDGET PRIOR TO 

DECEMBER 31, 2024. 

f. Other potentially actionable items: Agenda items for December 2024

Regular Meeting. INFORMATION {5}

i. Monthly Financial Statements for October 2024

ii. Treasurer’s Report of Annual Receipts and Disbursements

iii. Semi-Annual Review of closed Session Minutes

iv. Per Capita & Equalization Aid Grant Requirements

v. 2023-2025 Strategic Planning update

vi. Executive Director's Annual Performance Evaluation

vii. Board Policies:

1. 2040 Wage Scale

2. 3062 Security Cameras

viii. Personnel Policies:

1. TBD

ix. Other

XIII. Enter into Executive Session [5ILCS 120/2.(c)(1)] to review the performance

of a specific employee of the public body. ACTION {30}

MOTION: THAT THE BOARD ENTER INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION

[5ILCS 120/2.(c)(1)] TO REVIEW THE PERFORMANCE OF THE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR.

XIV. Reconvene to Regular Meeting. ACTION {<1}

XV. Public forum {15}

The Board of Trustees allows up to 15 minutes for Public Forum. Individuals

may introduce themselves and speak on any library issues, not to exceed 3

minutes. Those who want their remarks to be added to the Board record must

provide a copy to the Board Secretary prior to speaking.

XVI. Announcements {5}

a. By the chair:

i. Communications to the public

ii. Upcoming calendar:

1. Library Closed: Staff Development, Thursday, November 21, 2024.

2. Library Closed: Thanksgiving Day, Thursday, November 28, 2024.

3. Committee of the Whole, Tuesday, December 3, 2024, 7:00 p.m.

4. Library Legislative Breakfast, Wednesday, December 4, 2024,

Northbrook Illinois.

5. Regular Meeting, Tuesday, December 17, 2024, 7:00 p.m.

3

http://www.wnpl.info/


Warren-Newport Public Library District 

Board of Trustees 

Regular Meeting    November 19, 2024 

Agenda page 4 

224 North O’Plaine Road, Gurnee, Illinois 60031 

847-244-5150     FAX 847-244-3499

www.wnpl.info 

Individuals requiring special accommodations as specified by the American with Disabilities Act are requested 

to notify the Library Director at 847-244-5150 ext.3101 at least 48 hours in advance of this meeting date. 

b. By other trustees or the director

XVII. Adjournment. ACTION {<1}

MOTION: THAT THE MEETING BE ADJOURNED.

{Estimated total duration 187 minutes} 

4

http://www.wnpl.info/


Good morning,

Attached is the final audit report and SAS 114 letter. Raj Nagaraja, Managing Partner 
with ATA Group, will be attending our meeting via Zoom to present the audit.

Thanks,
Ryan

Ryan Livergood
Executive Director
Warren-Newport Public Library District
224 N. O’Plaine Road
Gurnee, IL 60031
847-244-5150 ext. 3008
rlivergood@wnpl.info

Board packet November 19, 2024: Presentation of Audited 
Financial Statements by ATA Group for FY 2023/2024
Friday, November 15, 2024 10:20 AM

      

5

mailto:rlivergood@wnpl.info


6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



Warren-Newport Public Library District 

Gurnee, Illinois 
 

 

1 

 

Suggestions & Questions from Our Library Users 
 

October 2024 
 

Collection-related comments 
The new book section is awful. Hot picks & Large print are not in alphabetical 

order by Author. No lights to see books. Libertyville, here we come. 
Thank you for your feedback. We apologize for any inconvenience caused by the 
current arrangement of our new book section. We are working on reorganizing 
the Hot Picks and Large Print sections to be in alphabetical order by author. 
Additionally, we are in the process of addressing the lighting issue to ensure 
better visibility. We are happy to announce that we recently increased the 
number of items in our Hot Picks section and those items should be available 
soon. We appreciate your patience and hope to provide a better experience soon.  
 
Miscellaneous-related comments 
I am interested on the library Logo Polo Shirt to buy or donations welcome. 

Thank You.  
Thank you for your interest in our library merchandise! We are currently 
exploring options for offering library merchandise for purchase. In the meantime, 
we welcome any donations to support our programs and services. Please stay 
tuned for updates. 

 
Super great after Dark Event Awesome! Libraries are so cool now! Cooler than 

this pencil.          

Thank you for your enthusiastic feedback! We are thrilled to hear that you 
enjoyed the After Dark event. Your support and excitement mean a lot to us. 
 

Thanks for keeping a display case in the children’s department! It is my child’s 
turn and it would have been sad if this program ended.  
We are glad to hear that your child is excited about the display case in the 
children’s department! We believe in fostering creativity and engagement among 
our young patrons, and we are committed to continuing this program. In fact, It 
has been so well received, that we decided to expand it to our adult patrons 
interested in sharing their collections as well. 
 
  

47



Warren-Newport Public Library District 

Gurnee, Illinois 
 

 

2 

 

Please make more prizes to win.  
Thank you for your suggestion! We are always looking for ways to enhance our 
programs and events. We will consider adding more prizes to make our activities 
even more exciting for our patrons. 
 

Service-related comments 
You guys are doing an amazing job. Love coming to the library with my 

daughters.  
Thank you so much for your kind words! We are delighted to hear that you and 
your daughters enjoy visiting the library. Your support and appreciation inspire 
us to continue providing excellent service. 
 

I’ve been a resident of the township for 25 years & have relied on the library for 
my reading needs. Until you joined the consortium I could get a best seller in a 
matter of week – now I’m waiting months. Do I have to begin buying books at a 

bookstore when I’m paying taxes for this library? A very unhappy patron. 
We apologize for the inconvenience you have experienced with the wait times for 
bestsellers. Joining the consortium has allowed us to expand our collection and 
provide access to a wider range of materials. However, we understand your 
frustration and are working on improving the availability of popular titles. WNPL 
is excited to announce that our Hot Picks collection has recently been expanded 
and those popular items have been ordered and will be ready soon for WNPL 
patrons to grab from the Hot Picks shelf. We appreciate your patience and 
continued support. Please look for an expanded Hot Picks collection soon.  
 

Thank you for taking the time to help us improve our service to you. 
If suggested a title for purchase, we have passed it along to staff members who 
order materials. 
 
Ryan Livergood, Executive Director 
Patron comments appear here unabridged and unedited. 
 

48



Policy 3023 
Fines and Fees 

Page 1 of 2 

Warren-Newport Public Library District  

Lake County, Illinois  

Board of Trustees  

Policy 3023  

Fines and Fees   
Adopted: December 8, 1981  
Reviewed/Revised: February 11, 1992; April 13, 1993; August 9, 1994; December 10, 1996; 

January 12, 1999; April 10, 2001; February 11, 2003; January 20, 2004;  
December 14, 2004; February 14, 2006; June 13, 2006; June 16, 2009; 
February 16, 2010; April 17, 2012; February 19, 2013; February 18, 2014; 
June 17, 2014; August 19, 2014; November 17, 2015; February 20, 2018; 
November 20, 2018; April 20, 2021; September 20, 2022; July 18, 2023; 
October 15, 2024; November 19, 2024 

  
  
ARTICLE 1.  OVERDUE MATERIALS 
 
Effective as of January 2, 2019, the Warren-Newport Public Library District (WNPLD) will no 
longer charge fines for overdue materials. However, borrowing privileges will be suspended and 
a patron will be billed a replacement fee and a $5.00 non-refundable processing fee if materials 
are not returned within an established time frame. 
  
Borrowing privileges are suspended when materials are two (2) weeks overdue. Patron is billed 
replacement and processing fees when materials are approximately 45 days overdue. 
 
 
ARTICLE 2. REPLACEMENT FEES AND REFUNDS   
  
Section 2.01  Replacement Costs 
The charge for an unreturned, lost, or badly damaged item will be the replacement cost plus a 
nonrefundable $5.00 processing fee. The replacement cost of library materials is obtained from 
the bibliographic record. If the price of the item cannot be determined from the bibliographic 
record, an average replacement cost will be determined by the Library staff. If the staff cannot 
determine an average replacement cost, a flat replacement cost of $15.00 will be charged. 
Replacement cost for the loss or damage of an accessory will be determined by Library staff.  
  
Section 2.02  Refunds 
Refunds will be granted for the cost of lost materials if returned in good condition within thirty (30) 
days of the payment date. WNPLD staff will make cash refunds of $50 or less in the Library. 
Refunds of $50 or more will be sent via a check in the mail. A refund check will be mailed from 
the WNPLD Administrative Office within four to six (4-6) weeks. 
 
 
ARTICLE 3. CLAIMS RETURNED 
 
The Library will accept a patron’s claim that materials have been returned for up to five (5)items. 
No item can be claimed returned after it is billed and assumed lost. 

49



Policy 3023 
Fines and Fees 
Page 2 of 2 

 
ARTICLE 4. FEES FOR RECOVERY AND COLLECTION SERVICES 
 
Submission of overdue/missing materials to materials recovery service $10.00 per submission. 
This payment must be made in full. Material recovery fees are non-waivable and nonrefundable.  
 
 
ARTICLE 5. FEES FOR COPYING AND PRINTING 
 
The fee for black & white photocopies and computer printouts is $0.10 per page. The fee for color 
photocopies is $0.25 per page. 
 
 
ARTICLE 6. FEES FOR USING THE PUBLIC FAX MACHINE 
 
Fees for using the public fax machine are set by the fax machine vendor and are subject to 
change.  
 
 
ARTICLE 7. FEE FOR RETURNED CHECK 
 
Fees for checks returned from the bank will be determined by the bank.  
 
 
ARTICLE 8.  FEES FOR INTERLIBRARY LOAN (ILL) 
 
Fees for interlibrary loans charged to WNPLD will be determined by the lending library.  
 
 
ARTICLE 9. BLOCKED PATRON STATUS 
 
A patron is blocked from checkout when their fees equal or exceed $10.00. 
 
 
ARTICLE 10.  EXCEPTIONS AND APPEALS 
 
Patrons may appeal charges to their accounts. Access Services staff is granted authority to waive 
minor fee amounts within established department practices. Appeals of substantial fees must be 
directed to the Head of Access Services or their designee. Substantial fee waivers granted by the 
Library will be documented in the patron record. Excessive waiver requests will be referred to the 
Executive Director for review. 
 

_________________________________________ 

 

50



Policy 3045 
The Vault 

Page 1 of 1 

Warren-Newport Public Library District 
Lake County, Illinois 

Board of Trustees 

Policy 3045 

The Vault 
Adopted: December 18, 2012 
Reviewed/Revised: May 20, 2014; April 18, 2017; February 18, 2020; November 15, 2022; 

November 19, 2024 

 
 
ARTICLE 1. PURPOSE 
 
The Vault is designed for a variety of activities including studying, reading, socializing, and 
gaming. It is not considered a quiet space. 
 
 
ARTICLE 2.  PATRONS 
 
The Vault is reserved for patrons who are in grades 6 through 12 during school days from 3-6 
PM. Outside of these hours, the Vault is open to all patrons. All computers, gaming stations, and 
furniture are reserved for teens to use during the restricted hours. The Library reserves the right 
to utilize the Vault for scheduled teen programs, events, and gaming activities. 
 
 
ARTICLE 3. CONDUCT 
 
Warren-Newport Public Library District (WNPLD) strives to make The Vault a comfortable and 
safe environment. Young people are expected to adhere to the following library policies: 3060 
Standards of Public Conduct and 3065 Technology Use by the Public. WNPLD staff will strictly 
enforce these and other policies. Inappropriate, foul, or derogatory language will not be tolerated. 
Public displays of affection, roughhousing, and physical violence will not be permitted. 
Inappropriate use of computers, furniture, and other equipment will not be tolerated. Vandalism 
or damage to library property will not be tolerated. 
 

_________________________________________ 

51



Policy 3063 
Unattended Children 

Page 1 of 2 

Warren-Newport Public Library District 
Lake County, Illinois 

Board of Trustees 

Policy 3063 

Unattended Children 
Adopted: June 13, 2006 
Reviewed/Revised: January 15, 2008; May 21, 2013; April 21, 2015; September 17, 2018; 

August 24, 2021; November 19, 2024 

 
 
ARTICLE 1.  RESPONSIBILITY 
 
Parents or legal guardians are responsible for their children’s safety and well-being while their 
children are visiting the Warren-Newport Public Library (WNPL). The Warren-Newport Public 
Library District (WNPLD) cannot and does not assume responsibility for the safety and well-being 
of unattended children.  
 
 
ARTICLE 2. GUIDELINES 
 
To help ensure the safety and comfort of children using WNPL and to maintain an atmosphere 
conducive to reading and study, the Board of Trustees of WNPLD has adopted the following 
guidelines: 
 

• WNPLD is not responsible for children left unattended.  
 

• Parents or legal guardians are responsible for their children’s behavior in the library. 
WNPL staff will assist children with using the library but will not supervise or babysit 
children. 

 

• Children under ten (10) years old must not be left alone in the library. A responsible person 
(parent, guardian, sibling, or babysitter), age 16 years or older must be in attendance in 
the same department of the library as the child and must maintain an awareness of the 
child’s location and activity. 

 

• A child of any age who has a medical condition that requires substantial monitoring must 
not be left alone in the library.  

 

• Unattended children over ten (10) years old must be involved in a library program or be 
using library resources. 

 

• Unattended children must be able to tell library staff their full name, parent or caregiver’s 
name, and parent or caregiver’s phone number upon request. They must also have the 
ability to contact a responsible person for transportation when transportation is needed. 

 

52



Policy 3063 
Unattended Children 
Page 2 of 2 

• Parents or guardians are responsible for picking up their children prior to the library 
closing. Under no circumstances will a staff member drive any child home.  

 

• If the parents of an unattended child under the age of fourteen (14) years cannot be 
located when the library is closing, the staff will call the Gurnee Police Department, who 
will assume responsibility for the child. At their discretion, staff may call the Gurnee Police 
Department to report an unattended child. 
 

• The regular use of WNPL as a place for children to go in lieu of daycare services is not 
permitted. 

 

_________________________________________ 
 
 

53



Policy 3065 
Technology Use by the Public 

Page 1 of 3 

Warren-Newport Public Library District 
Lake County, Illinois 

Board of Trustees 

Policy 3065 

Technology Use by the Public 
Adopted: August 13, 2002 
Reviewed/Revised: July 17, 2007; March 17, 2009;  August 20, 2013*; September 16, 2014; 

January 19, 2016; May 16, 2017; July 17, 2018; February 19, 2019; February 18, 2020; 
February 16, 2021; November 19, 2024 

*Title changed from Computer Use by the Public 

 
 

ARTICLE 1. INTRODUCTION 
 
In response to advances in technology and the changing needs of its residents, the 
Warren-Newport Public Library District (WNPLD) endeavors to develop collections and services 
that meet the informational, recreational, and educational needs of its community. It is within this 
context that WNPLD offers access to technology.  
 
In accordance with Illinois Library Association best practices (Serving Our Public 4.0: Standards 
for Illinois Public Libraries, 2020), this policy will be reviewed annually by the WNPLD Board of 
Trustees. 
 
 
ARTICLE 2. GENERAL RULES GOVERNING TECHNOLOGY AND INTERNET USE 
 

Section 2.01  Users 
WNPLD reserves the right to limit, refuse, and/or ban any patron from using WNPLD technology. 
Illinois residents who have a library card from another public library are encouraged to register 
their card with WNPLD. Illinois residents without library cards or visitors from outside Illinois may 
use WNPLD computers after obtaining permission from appropriate WNPLD staff. The granting 
or withholding of such permission is solely at the discretion of WNPLD staff. 
 
Section 2.02  Time Limits 
WNPLD reserves the right to limit the amount of time an individual can use library technology.  
 
Section 2.03  Behavioral Expectations 
Users must comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, including laws governing the 
transmission and dissemination of information via the internet. Users shall not use WNPLD 
technology to engage in any of the following activities: 

• make unauthorized entry into any computational, informational, or communication 
services or resources; 

• distribute unsolicited advertising; 

• invade the privacy of others; 

• make any attempt to damage library technology; 

• engage in any activity that is harassing or defamatory; 

54



Policy 3065 
Technology Use by the Public 
Page 2 of 3 

• use the internet for any illegal activity, including the violation of copyright or other rights of 
third parties, or in a manner inconsistent with the WNPLD’s tax-exempt status or its proper 
operation;  

• “hack” or attempt to gain unauthorized access to any network technology or system; or 

• behave in a manner that is disruptive to others or otherwise in violation of the WNPLD 
Policy 3060 Standards of Public Conduct. 
 

Section 2.04  Wireless Internet Access  

• WNPLD assumes no responsibility for any alterations or interference with any 
technology’s configuration, operation, or data files resulting from connection to WNPLD’s 
wireless network.  

• Anti-virus software and security protection are the responsibility of the patron using any 
personal technologies while connecting to the wireless system. 

• WNPLD assumes no responsibility for damage, theft, or loss of any kind to a user’s 
equipment, software, data files, or other personal property brought into or used at the 
WNPLD campus. 

• WNPLD cannot guarantee that wireless internet access will be available at any specific 
time, and WNPLD cannot accept reservations for wireless internet access. 

• WNPLD cannot guarantee upload or download speed.  
 

Section 2.05  Revocation of Access Privileges 
Violations of the rules governing use of technology in the Warren-Newport Public Library (WNPL) 
may result in a loss of access. Unlawful activities will be dealt with in an appropriate manner. 
 
 

ARTICLE 3. PUBLIC USE OF THE INTERNET 
 

Section 3.01  Choosing and Evaluating Sources on the Internet 
WNPLD is not responsible for the content of the internet. Library patrons use the internet at their 
own risk and are responsible for evaluating the validity and appropriateness of information they 
find. WNPLD provides training for members of the public to assist them in using the internet in a 
safe, effective, and efficient manner. 
 
Section 3.02  Internet Access by Minors 
Parents and legal guardians must assume responsibility for deciding which WNPLD resources 
are appropriate for their own children. Parents and guardians should guide their children in the 
use of the internet and inform them about materials they should not use.  WNPLD affirms and 
acknowledges the rights and responsibilities of parents and guardians to monitor and determine 
their children’s access to WNPLD materials and resources, including those available through the 
internet. WNPLD filters the children and teen computers to assist in the safe and effective use of 
these resources by all minors. Parents and guardians should be aware that filtering software does 
not detect all objectionable websites. 

 
Section 3.03  Public Users’ Security 
WNPLD will not release information on the use of specific internet resources by members of the 
public except as required by law. However, users should be aware that the internet is not a secure 
medium and that third parties may be able to obtain information regarding users’ activities.  
 
 

55



Policy 3065 
Technology Use by the Public 

Page 3 of 3 

Section 3.04  No Expectation of Privacy 
WNPL is a public place, and WNPLD cannot ensure a user’s privacy while accessing the internet 
via WNPLD computers or wireless system. Patrons are cautioned that public internet service does 
not secure or otherwise isolate individual internet sessions and is not recommended for access 
to sensitive information such as bank accounts and health records. WNPLD assumes no liability 
in the event that patron’s private data is accessed by a third party while using WNPLD 
technologies. When required in order to assist patrons, library staff may use remote assistance 
software to view and take control of computer sessions. 
 
Section 3.05  Indemnity 
Users of WNPLD technologies shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless WNPLD, its officers, 
Trustees, employees, and agents against all claims, actions, and judgments based upon or arising 
out of user’s use of WNPLD technologies. 
 
 

ARTICLE 4. STAFF ASSISTANCE 
 

Section 4.01  Technology Assistance 
WNPLD staff provides basic assistance on library technology. Staff members are not allowed to 
install, configure, repair, or make changes to any patron technology. Staff may direct the user to 
appropriate resources for advanced assistance.  

 
Section 4.02  User Accounts 
WNPLD staff will not access a user’s personal accounts on the user’s behalf. 
 
Section 4.03  Software Installation 
WNPLD staff will not install supplementary software in immediate response to a patron request.  
 
 

ARTICLE 5. RELATIONSHIP TO OTHER WNPLD POLICIES 

 
WNPLD Policy 3065 Technology Use by the Public is part of the overall policy structure of WNPLD 
and will be interpreted with other existing policies. Copies of all WNPLD policies are on the 
WNPLD website and are available upon request from WNPLD staff members. 
 

_________________________________________ 
 
 

56



Warren-Newport Public Library District 
Staff Manual 
 

Policy 319 
Disability Benefits Plans 

Page 1 of 1 

 

319 Disability Benefits Plans 
Effective Date: 07/12/2006 
Review/Revision Date: 07/17/2018; 11/19/2024  

 
 
The Warren-Newport Public Library District (WNPLD) provides voluntary disability insurance 
plans to help employees manage illness or injury by ensuring continued income for those who 
must take a long-term absence or who become disabled and unable to work. 
 
Employees in the following employment classifications are eligible to participate in the voluntary 
disability insurance plan:  
 

• Regular full-time employees 

• Regular part-time employees who work an average of at least 30 hours per week for more 
than 120 days.  

 
Voluntary Short-and Long-Term Disability Plans 
 
WNPLD offers voluntary plans for employees who wish to purchase short- and long-term disability 
insurance. This plan is provided through a separate insurance carrier and is fully funded by the 
employee via payroll deductions. The library does not contribute to the cost of this plan.  
 
Disability Benefits Plans for IMRF Members 
 
Employees enrolled in the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF) may be eligible for temporary 
disability or total and permanent disability as part of their IMRF benefits.  
 
Details of the IMRF disability benefits plans including benefit amounts, limitations and restrictions 
can be found on the IMRF website or by calling 1-800-Ask-IMRF.  
 
IMRF determines all eligibility requirements for disability benefits, including service credit 
requirements and required documentation.  
 
Contact the Human Resources Manager for more information about disability benefits plans for 
eligible employees.  
 
 

57



President’s Report, November 2024 
 

 

October 22 

45 Minutes 

October Regular Board Meeting 

November 5 

30 Minutes 

Review Agenda for November CoW meeting 

November 7 

30 Minutes 

Review KnowB4 Cybersecurity Training Modules 

November 11 

1 Hour 

Prepare Annual Executive Director’s Evaluation Survey 

 

November 12 

1 Hour 

November CoW Meeting 

Review Agenda for November Regular Board Meeting 

 

November 15 

15 Minutes 

Complete CoW Meeting Minutes and President’s Report 

  

 

  

George Kotsinis, President 

WNPLD Board of Trustees 

10/15/2024 

58



Warren-Newport Public Library District 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT FOR OCTOBER 2024 

NOVEMBER 19, 2024 

Submitted by Executive Director, Ryan Livergood 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

Highlights:  

• Library After Dark was held on Saturday, October 19, with approximately 120 patrons in 

attendance.  

• Our second annual Community Ofrenda was a big hit. 49 patrons did crafts and added photos to 

the Ofrenda. 

• WNPL staff and volunteers represented the library at the Warren Special Recreation 

Association (WSRA) Trunk or Treat on Sun., Oct. 20. It was estimated that nearly 300 trick-or-

treaters participated. 

 

Meetings, programs, training attended:  

• CCS Executive Board (10/16). 

• Illinois State Library FY2025 Public Library Construction Grants webinar (10/17). 

• WNPL Library After Dark (10/19). 

• Lake County Digital Equity Coalition (10/29). 

 

Special plans for coming month:  

• Patron Point Phase 1 (online library card registration) implementation.  

• The Workshop (makerspace) grand opening. 

• New automated materials handler goes live.  

 

Special plans for the near future: 

• Patron Point Phase 2 (email marketing) implementation. 

• New WNPL website. 

 

A D M I N I S T R A T I O N  
 

DEVELOPMENT:  

• Laura, Sandy, and Ryan attended a virtual presentation from the Illinois State Library on 

October 17, regarding FY25 Public Library Construction Grants.  

• Laura completed a Fundraising for Nonprofit Organizations certificate through the University 

of Wisconsin-Milwaukee.  

• The Annual Fund mailing is progressing, with a goal of mailing mid-November. 

• Development collaborated with Marketing for a campaign honoring the Friends of WNPL and 

soliciting memberships during National Friends of the Library Week. The Friends appreciated 

the additional recognition and highlights of their achievements and library support. 

 

59



Warren-Newport Public Library District 

Executive Director’s Report 

November 19, 2024 

 2 

 
 

Fundraising through October

October Year to Date

Annual Fund 2,838.00$   6,535.95$   

Gifts 20,000.00 20,000.00

Total 22,838.00$ 26,535.95$ 

 
 

FRIENDS:  

• Laura, Sandy, and I attended the Friends of WNPL meeting on October 24. I read and shared 

the Proclamation of National Friends of the Library Week from the Library Board of Trustees, 

and the WNPL provided some treats to show our appreciation for the Friends.  

• The next Friends Saturday Booksale is scheduled for November 2.  

 

PERSONNEL:  

Status of Organization: October 

Number of full-time employees: 38 

Number of part-time employees: 43 

TOTAL number of employees: 81 

Full-time equivalents: 61.58 

New hires:  
• 10/1 M. Lyons-PT Programming Associate, 18 hours wkly 

• 10/7 V. Guarin FT Graphic Design Specialist 37.50 hours wkly 

• 10/8 B. Pham PT Maker Services Technician 17 hours wkly 

• 10/9 S. Sabel PT Security Monitor 9.50 hours wkly 

Separations: 

• 10/25 A. Kessler-PT Library Services Associate, 15 hours wkly 

• 10/29 T. Biggs-PT Library Services Associate, 4 hours wkly 

Changes: None 

 

Workshops, programs and training attended: 31 Training hours 

 

 

 

60



Warren-Newport Public Library District 

Executive Director’s Report 

November 19, 2024 

 3 

 

O P E R A T I O N S  
 

FACILITIES  

• Performed daily work activities and work requested. 

• Continue to work on extra items in office 152 for Sandy Beda. 

• Finished re-arranged garage shelving to store files and other items as needed. 

• Installed new TV at Story Time Room. 

• Amber Mechanical onsite to do warranty repairs on RTU-1 

• Ford van taken into service to dealership. 

• The Hill Mechanical group on site to start performing PM’s on RTU’s for winter season. 

• Contractor CSM on site to perform work for new sorter induction wall. 

• Removed the first two sections of the old sorter to make space for contractor work and have 

sorter still functional till new install. 

• Metting Rooms “A” & “B” flooring is all complete with quarter round molding. 

• Exhaust Fan # 1, motor removed and replaced. 

• Repair main air handler (McQuay), fan motor not working, building pressure sensor fault. 

• Meet with landscape contractor for preliminary phase II project, front of library and tree care. 

 

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY  

• CCS migration completed. 

• The OpenAthens project completed and Web01 server which handled database connection has 

been stopped. 

• The Sorter project is in progress. 

• Comprise server for patron payment has been stopped. 

• On 10/16, IT conducted TLC with Internal Communications Committee for effectively using 

Emails and Teams. 

• Met with Vendors for Meeting room AV. 

• Volunteers were given a new laptop which will be managed by IT. 

• New Television was permanently set up in the Storytime room to free up Storytime cart. 

• 7 requests processed for new hire, separations and title change. 

• The management team in MS Teams restructured to improve accessibility. 

• New Wi-Fi GoTo phones were set up at staff desks with no data ports. 

• 2 Self checks were retired. 

• On 10/22, we experienced intermittent unavailability of OneDrive and SharePoint. Microsoft 

resolved this issue within an hour. 

• Processed Active directory and Office 365 requests. 

• Troubleshooting of staff and patron equipment and hotspots. 

• Conducted scheduled Server maintenance. 

• Performed scheduled backups and daily morning rounds. 

• Resolved 84 helpdesk tickets. 

 

 

 

61



Warren-Newport Public Library District 

Executive Director’s Report 

November 19, 2024 

 4 

MATERIALS SERVICES  

• Launched EBSCO database package from the Illinois State Library 

• Continue to de-duplicate records from the new additions to CCS 

• Redesigned All Databases page 

 

SECURITY STATISTICS  

• Patron Assists: 87 

• Staff Assists: 8 

• Behavioral Contacts: 26 

• Unattended Children: 3 

• Book Donations: 12 

• Gurnee Police & Fire Assists: 0 

• Suspended Patrons: 0 

• Patrons asked to leave EOD: 0 

P U B L I C  S E R V I C E S  
 

ACCESS SERVICES  

• Worked offline for the migration of Waukegan and Mt. Prospect joining CCS.  

• Access Services joined a community event with Library Services (Thank you Mikey and 

Emily).  

• Library After Dark preparation and the event night.  

• Stats task force began meeting. 

• Access Services had the installation of the new sorter.  

• Final touches on online card registration, ready to launch Nov. 1 

 

LIBRARY SERVICES  

• The Workshop had its soft launch with appointments only for the last couple of weeks of 

October. 

• Tutor Time appointments also started with Jen and Soren helping patrons out with 7 

appointments during the month of October. 

• The non-Fiction Weeding project continued and is nearly finished.  

• Multiple programs with some highlights being: 

Cynthia hosting an ILP with Jason Reynolds, 

Ceilidh with multiple Teen Crafts and Art Programs, 

Megan with Dungeons and Dragons. 

• Amy Longwell started the project of reworking the Roku’s to make it easier for patrons to use. 

 

MARKETING  

• The Marketing department finished work on the Winter issue of the Inside Angle. Set to mail 

November 15. 

• Worked on promotional materials for Library After Dark, Workshop Ribbon Cutting, Annual 

Fund. 

62



Warren-Newport Public Library District 

Executive Director’s Report 

November 19, 2024 

 5 

• Successful social media posts from the Marketing department included posts for Library After 

Dark promotion, Ofrenda photos (photo credit: Natalia), Spanish Café photos, and Friends 

Week promo. Reels that were popular were Back to the Future Day, Punk for a Day, and the 

Ghosts reel (filming credit: Abby). 

• Two enews blasts was sent during October highlighting Library After Dark, ILP, Fall reading 

challenge, Friends of the library week, Saturday Sale, Ofrenda Community Assembly, Tutor 

Time, and various programs. Open rates were 46% and 43%. 

• The Marketing Department accepted over 60 graphics and publicity requests during September. 

 

PROGRAMMING AND COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT  

• We kicked off our Early Literacy Visits in the Community for the 2024 school year. We visited 

5-12 classrooms each week! 

• Vault activities for the teens got underway with crafts and open art. 

• We offered a wide variety of Hispanic Heritage month programming that continued into 

October. Examples include: Coloring Through Heritage & Flores de Frida.  

• We also went offsite to several Community Events including SOMOS of Lake County, District 

56 Hispanic Heritage Celebration, District 50 Hispanic Heritage Celebration, CLC LatinX 

resource fair, Gurnee Park District’s Fall Fest. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

63



Warren-Newport Public Library District 

Executive Director’s Report 

November 19, 2024 

 6 

 

OCTOBER STATISTICS 

 

 
 

Programming and Services Statistics: Statistics FY2024-25.xlsx 

 

 

 

END 

LIBRARY CIRCULATION

YTD Total YTD
TYPE OF MATERIAL Adult Youth Total Adult Youth Total
Audiobooks 335                174                509                1372 843 2215
Wonderbooks/Kits -                 125                125                0 711 711
Books 10,651       16,406       27,057       44952 69964 114916
Music Compact Discs 1,106           53                   1,159           4248 315 4563
Hot Picks -                 -                 -                 0 0 0
DVDs/Blu-rays 3,271           468                3,739           14489 2060 16549
Magazines 603                39                   642                2417 150 2567
Video Games 572                -                 572                2791 0 2791
Hotspots 98                   -                 98                   281 0 281
7-Day Hotspots 26                   -                 26                   83 0 83
Rokus 17                   -                 17                   61 0 61
Library of Things 43                   73                   116                211 310 521
Museum Passes 21                   -                 21                   114 0 114
ebooks (DLI, Hoopla) 4,169           508                4,677           15215 2348 17563
eaudiobooks (DLI, Hoopla) 5,572           630                6,202           21248 2784 24032
evideo (Kanopy, Hoopla) 559                64                   623                2243 196 2439
emusic (Hoopla) 103                9                       112                364 27 391
emagazines (DLI/PressReader) 1,544           -                 1,544           5138 0 5138
ecomicbooks (Hoopla) 151                18                   169                518 127 645
Total emedia 12,098       1,229           13,327       44726 5482 50208
TOTAL 28,841       18,567       47,408       115745 79835 195580

October

64

https://warrennewport.sharepoint.com/:x:/s/DepartmentManagers/EWLZ7OaLywRIlU3GkVS9koQBUhlUJxnhs8Cg_Llk0tU16A?e=CMnueH


Warren-Newport Public Library District – 12 Month Forecast 
 

 

BOARD AGENDA ADMINISTRATION AGENDA GENERAL LIBRARY AGENDA 
DECEMBER 2024– COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE DECEMBER 3/ REGULAR MEETING DECEMBER 17 

• Treasurer’s Report of Annual Receipts and 
Disbursements  

• Semi-annual review of closed session minutes: 
second half year  

• Approval of Executive Director's Annual 
Performance Evaluation 

− Treasurers’ Report of Receipts and Disbursements 
to file with County Clerk 

− Email Holiday Cards 

− Program pay increases for staff 

−  

− Library Closed: 
Christmas Eve, Tuesday, 
December 24. 
Christmas Day, Wednesday, 
December 25, and 
New Year’s Eve, Tuesday, 
December 31 

JANUARY 2025 – COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE JANUARY 7/REGULAR MEETING JANUARY 21 

• Approval of Per Capita & Equalization Aid Grant 
Application. Deadline January 30 

• Ordinance- Abatement of Tax for Debt Service 

• Fundraising update.  

• Approval of Semi-annual closed session minutes  

• 2023-2025 WNPL Strategic Plan update 

• Annual membership renewals for Trustees 

− Pay increases effective January 1.  

− Ordinance – Bond Levy Abatement 

− Approval and filing of Illinois Per Capita & 
Equalization Aid Grant Application. Deadline 
January 30 

− 2023-2025 WNPL Strategic Plan update 

− Fundraising update 

− RAILS Memberships Standards Data Collection. 
Deadline March 31 

− Set Budget process timeline 

− Winter programs begin 

− Friends of the Library 
Meeting TBD 

− Library Closed: 
New Year’s Day, Wednesday 
January 1 
 

FEBRUARY 2025 – COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE FEBRUARY 4/ REGULAR MEETING FEBRUARY 18 

• Annual Review:  Board Self-Evaluation and Goals 

• CW Initial overview of potential capital projects for 
FY 25/26 

• President’s Day Library Legislative Meet-up.  

− President’s Day Library Legislative Meet-up 

− Capital projects evaluation criteria. 

− Strategic Planning Process  

− ILA, ALA+UFL Membership renewals for Trustees 

− Friend of the Library Book 
Sale TBD 

− Friends of the Library 
Meeting TBD 

65



Warren-Newport Public Library District – 12 Month Forecast 
 

 

BOARD AGENDA ADMINISTRATION AGENDA GENERAL LIBRARY AGENDA 
MARCH 2025- COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MARCH 4/ REGULAR MEETING MARCH 18 

• CW Capital planning review and discussion. 

• Executive Director Quarterly Review- Evaluation 
and Goals 

• Board Training and self-development 

− RAILS Annual Library Certification deadline March 
31. 

− ILLINET Interlibrary Loan and Reciprocal 
Borrowing Statistical Survey.  

− Capital planning budget finalized 

− Board Training and self-development 

− Freedom of Information Day  

APRIL 2025 - COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE APRIL 1/ REGULAR MEETING APRIL 15 

• CW Initial presentation of budget draft  

• File Statement of Economic Interest. (Last day 
April 30) 

• Board Quarterly Review- Self-Evaluation and 
Goals 

• 2023-2025 WNPL Strategic Plan update 

• PLA 2025 Conference  

− Budget submitted by departments 

− File Statement of Economic Interest (elected 
officials, head librarians and other department 
heads of a unit of local government. (Last day April 
30) 

− 2023-2025 WNPL Strategic Plan update  

− National Library Week 

− Spring programs begins  

MAY 2025 - COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MAY 6/ REGULAR MEETING MAY 20 

• CW Review of latest budget daft and discussion 

• Tentative transfer of funds from Expendable Trust 
to Endowment Fund 

− Renewal for medical, general liability and 
worker’s compensation insurance 

− Staff Development Day: Emergency Drills 

− Library Closed: 
Mother’s Day, Sunday, May 12  
Staff Development Day, 
Tuesday, May 14, 9 am – 1 pm  
Memorial Day, Monday, May 27 

66



Warren-Newport Public Library District – 12 Month Forecast 
 

 

BOARD AGENDA ADMINISTRATION AGENDA GENERAL LIBRARY AGENDA 
JUNE 2025- COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE JUNE 3/ REGULAR MEETING JUNE 17 

• CW Finalize FY25-26 Budget 

• Approval of FY25-26 Budget at Regular meeting 

• Ordinance Regular Meeting Schedule for FY25-26 

• Ordinance to Transfer to the Special Reserve Fund 

• Semi-annual review of closed session minutes: 
First half year review  

• ALA Annual Conference 

Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Ends 

− End of Fiscal Year Annual Fund Appeal 

− Ordinance Regular Meeting Schedule for 
FY25-26 

− Ordinance to Transfer to the Special Reserve 
Fund 

− File Board roster with the Illinoi Secretary of 
State and Lake County Clerk before July 1.  

− ALA Annual Conference 

− Summer Reading Begins  

− Library Closed:  Father’s Day 

JULY 2025 –  COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE / REGULAR MEETING TBD 

• Ordinance - Building & Maintenance Tax 

• Ordinance - Annual Review of Non-Resident Card 
Program 

• Ordinance -Tentative Budget & Appropriations  

• Annual Audit of Secretary’s Meetings Minutes 
FY24-25 

• Approval of Semi-annual review of closed session 
minutes. First half year review. 

• Board Quarterly Review: Self-Evaluation and 
Goals 

• Executive Director Quarterly Review- Evaluation 
and Goals 
 

− NEW FISCAL YEAR 2025-2026 BEGINS 

− Ordinance - Building, Sites & Maintenance 

− Ordinance -Tentative Budget & Appropriations  

− Ordinance - Annual Review of non-resident card 
participation 

− Begin work on Illinois Public Libraries Annual 
Report (IPLAR) 

− Annual Audit of Secretary’s Meeting minutes 
FY24-25 

− Total Compensation Packages for employees 
earning over $75,000 
 

− Library Closed:  Independence 
Day, July 4 

AUGUST 2025 - COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE  / REGULAR MEETING TBD 

• Approval of 2025 Illinois Public Library Annual 
Report (IPLAR)  

− File 2025 Illinois Public Libraries Annual Report 
(IPLAR). Deadline on or before September 1 

− Begin work on Annual Audit Report  

− 2023-2025 WNPL Strategic Plan update 

− Summer Reading Ends 

− Gurnee Days 

− Friends of the Library 
Meeting 

67



Warren-Newport Public Library District – 12 Month Forecast 
 

 

BOARD AGENDA ADMINISTRATION AGENDA GENERAL LIBRARY AGENDA 
SEPTEMBER 2025- COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE / REGULAR MEETING TBD 

• Public Hearing - Annual Budget and 
Appropriation 

• Ordinance – Annual Budget & Appropriation 

• Resolution – Proclamation Friends of the Library 
Week October 

− Public Hearing – Annual Budget and Appropriation 

− Ordinance – Annual Budget & Appropriation 

− Resolution – Proclamation FOL Week 

− Transfer unexpended funds from prior FY to 
Special Reserve Fund 

− Fall programs begin 

− Library Card Sign-Up Month 

− Banned Books Week 

− Library Closed:  
Labor Day 

OCTOBER 2025 -   COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE / REGULAR MEETING TBD 

• Resolution – Determine Estimate of Funds 
Needed 

• Complete and present Annual Audit to the Board 

• Board Quarterly Review: Self-Evaluation and 
Goals 

• 2023-2025 WNPL Strategic Plan update 

• Work on Per Capita & Equalization Aid Grant 
Application requirements 

• Executive Director Quarterly Review- Evaluation 
and Goals 

• ILA Annual Conference. Trustee day. 

− Complete and present Annual Audit to the Board 

− Resolution – Determine Estimate of Funds Needed 

− Annual Appeal Letters 

− Begin work on Per Capita & Equalization Aid Grant 
Application. January 2026 

− Begin work on holiday cards 
− Receive audited annual financial statement 

− Annual performance evaluations started 

− ILA Annual Conference  

− National Friends of Libraries 
Week 

− Friends of the Library 
Meeting TBD 

NOVEMBER 2025 –   COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE / REGULAR MEETING TBD 

• Truth in Taxation Law (formerly TITA) – No Public 
Hearing this year 

• Levy Ordinance 

• Staff Year End Bonuses 

• Treasurer to prepare sworn report of Receipts 
and Disbursements 

• 2023-2025 Strategic Planning update 

• Treasurer- to file a sworn, detailed, and itemized 
statement of all receipts and expenditures for 
the preceding FY 

• Executive Director's Annual Performance 
Evaluation review  

− Approval of Levy Ordinance 

− File Audit Report and annual Financial Report with 
Comptroller and County Clerk.  

− Publish treasurer's report of annual receipts and 
disbursements 

− Work on holiday e-cards 

− Mail annual appeal letter.  

− Post Continuing Disclosure Information (Bonds) 

− Annual performance evaluations of managers and 
administrative staff 

− Staff Development Day, Thursday, November 21.  

− 2023-2025 WNPL Strategic Plan update 

− Inside Angle: Winter Issue  
− Book Sale TBD 

− LIBRARY CLOSED:   

Staff Development Day  
Thanksgiving Day  

68



Good morning,

After a thorough examination of our options for a new website and a detailed vetting of 
our best options, we have decided to go with Weblinx as our vendor partner to create a 
new WNPL website. While more expensive than the runner-up (CyberOptik), Weblinx 
offers the following advantages:

• Commitment to accessibility. They understand a fully accessible website is an 
absolute need for us. Our testing of their library clients’ websites verified this, as all 
passed the accessibility testing. 

• Unlike CyberOptik, they will not be basing our new website on a template. This will 
be a fully custom-built website for us.

• Weblinx was very responsive to us during our evaluation process compared to 
CyberOptik. In my experience, if the sales team isn’t responsive, it is an indicator 
that the project team won’t be very responsive either.

Before entering this agreement, I was able to negotiate a savings of $3,600 that allows 
us to be slightly under budget for this project. The total cost of the project will be 
$18,000 (we budgeted $20,000). Our goal is to have a new website launched no later 
than June of 2025.

Thanks,
Ryan

Ryan Livergood
Executive Director
Warren-Newport Public Library District
224 N. O’Plaine Road
Gurnee, IL 60031
847-244-5150 ext. 3008
rlivergood@wnpl.info

Board packet November 19, 2024: WNPL website update
Friday, November 15, 2024 11:23 AM

      

69

https://www.weblinxinc.com/library-web-design/
mailto:rlivergood@wnpl.info


Good morning,

In September, the Board reviewed the initial draft of the WNPL Strategic Marketing 
Plan. The WNPL Marketing Committee has identified actionable strategies to achieve 
strategic initiatives. Attached is the updated and revised marketing plan.

Thanks,
Ryan

Ryan Livergood
Executive Director
Warren-Newport Public Library District
224 N. O’Plaine Road
Gurnee, IL 60031
847-244-5150 ext. 3008
rlivergood@wnpl.info

Board packet November 19, 2024: WNPL Strategic Marketing 
Plan
Friday, November 15, 2024 12:07 PM

      

70

mailto:rlivergood@wnpl.info


 

 

Warren-Newport Public Library: Marketing Strategic Plan 2024 - 2025 

Empowering Our Community Through Increased Awareness and Engagement 

The Warren-Newport Public Library (WNPL) is a vibrant hub for our diverse community, 
offering a wealth of programs and services. We are committed to enriching, 
empowering, and enlightening all residents. 

Understanding Our Community 

Our communities have transformed significantly in the past five decades. We have a 
growing Hispanic population, with Spanish becoming the second-most spoken language 
in our schools. Income levels have shifted, with over half of our patrons coming from 
households with an annual income under $124,999. The pandemic has also impacted 
usage patterns, highlighting the need to adapt and connect more effectively. 

Building on Strengths, Seizing Opportunities 

Our strengths include talented staff, a strong online presence, engaging programs, and 
dedicated volunteers. We have opportunities to enhance the user experience on our 
website, build strong partnerships, and expand outreach to underserved communities, 
like the Hispanic population and low-income residents. 

A Two-Pronged Approach for Inclusive Impact 

WNPL is committed to serving all residents, recognizing their diverse needs. We will 
employ a two-pronged approach: 

• Universal Appeal: We create a welcoming and valuable library experience for 
everyone, regardless of age, background, or interests. This foundation is built 
through core services, collections, and programs that cater to a broad audience. 

• Targeted Outreach: Data analysis allows us to segment our population by 
demographics, interests, and usage patterns. This enables us to develop 
targeted messaging and outreach programs that resonate with specific groups, 
such as:  

o Culturally relevant materials and programs for the Hispanic community 
o Workshops and events tailored to specific needs (e.g., job seekers, 

students, seniors) 
o Utilizing preferred communication channels (e.g., social media platforms, 

newsletter mailing, and email marketing) to reach different segments 

By combining a universal appeal with targeted outreach, we will create a 
comprehensive marketing plan that effectively reaches and engages our diverse 
communities. This ensures our services are accessible, relevant, and impactful for all 
residents. 

71



 

 

Strategic Initiatives 

These initiatives will guide our marketing efforts: 

Enhance Online User Experience and Digital Access 

Website Redesign 

Timeline: 

• Phase 1: Planning and Preparation: January - March 2025 
• Phase 2: Design and Development: April - September 2025 
• Phase 3: Testing and Launch: October - November 2025 
• Phase 4: Post-Launch Evaluation and Optimization: December 2025 onward 

A cross-functional task force will oversee the redesign process to ensure a user-centric 
and efficient website. 

Patron Point and Verify 

Digital Library Card Sign-Up 

Implement Patron Point Verify to streamline the online library card registration process 
and provide immediate access to digital resources. 

• Launch: November 2024 
• Marketing Campaign: Q1 2025 onward 

Email Marketing  

Implement Patron Point’s advanced email marketing tool that leverages user 
segmentation and integrated ILS data to deliver personalized communications such as 
library programs, events, and recommended reads tailored to their interests and 
borrowing history. 

• Launch: December 2024 

Build Strong Community Partnerships 

• Objective: Expand library services and outreach through strategic collaborations 
with local organizations. Measure success by tracking increased library card 
sign-ups, program attendance, and community engagement metrics from 
partnered organizations. 

• Target Audience: Local businesses, schools, community organizations, and non-
profits. 

• Strategies:  

72



 

 

o Participate in local business organizations and maintain existing 
partnerships with schools, park districts, and townships. 

o Utilize rubric to evaluate and add new library partners. 
o Seek sponsorships and co-branding opportunities with local businesses to 

increase library visibility and funding. 

Expand Outreach to Underserved Communities 

• Objective: Increase library engagement and resource accessibility among 
Hispanic and low-income residents in Gurnee, Illinois. 

• Target Audience: Hispanic population, low-income residents, and patrons with 
limited access to resources. 

• Strategies:  
o Utilize bilingual staff expertise to create culturally relevant content, 

programs, and outreach initiatives. 
o Collaborate with local Hispanic organizations to promote library services 

and offer joint programs. 
o Expand Spanish-language programming with at least two programs per 

month geared towards native Spanish speakers. 
o Create marketing materials and social media content in Spanish to reach 

the Hispanic community more effectively. 

Increase Library Program Participation 

• Objective: Boost attendance and engagement in library programs and events. 
• Target Audience: General. 
• Strategies:  

o Targeted marketing via social media, email, and print newsletters. 
o Program diversity offering various programs catering to different interests 

and age groups. 
o Utilize programming opportunities, one-on-one appointments, and table 

tent signs to gather patron feedback. 

Conclusion 

By implementing these strategic initiatives, WNPL will significantly increase community 
awareness, engagement, and usage. We will continue to adapt and evolve to serve our 
diverse population effectively. 

Data Sources 

• Chicago Metropolitan Agency for Planning, Data Reports, accessed March 13, 2024, 
https://www.cmap.illinois.gov/ 

• Gale Analytics report, Patron Measures/Community Insights, data gathered October 31, 
2023 

• Illinois Report Card, Individual School Report Cards, accessed March 14, 2024, 
https://www.illinoisreportcard.com/ 

73

https://www.cmap.illinois.gov/
https://www.illinoisreportcard.com/


 

 

• U.S. Census, 2020 Newport Township, Lake County, Illinois Data Report, accessed April 
8, 2024, 
https://data.census.gov/profile/Newport_township,_Lake_County,_Illinois?g=060XX00U
S1709752753 

• U.S. Census, 2020 Warren Township, Lake County, Illinois Data Report, accessed April 

8, 2024, 

https://data.census.gov/profile/Warren_township,_Lake_County,_Illinois?g=060XX00US

1709778877 

 

74

https://data.census.gov/profile/Newport_township,_Lake_County,_Illinois?g=060XX00US1709752753
https://data.census.gov/profile/Newport_township,_Lake_County,_Illinois?g=060XX00US1709752753
https://data.census.gov/profile/Warren_township,_Lake_County,_Illinois?g=060XX00US1709778877
https://data.census.gov/profile/Warren_township,_Lake_County,_Illinois?g=060XX00US1709778877


To enrich, empower, and enlighten the people of the Warren-Newport Public Library District. — Mission statement 

approved by the Board of Trustees, July 18, 2023. 

Warren-Newport Public Library District 
Board of Trustees—Minutes of Regular Meeting 

October 15, 2024– Page 1 of 5 

Warren-Newport Public Library District 
Lake County, Illinois 

Board of Trustees 
George Kotsinis, President Katherine Arnold 

Celeste Flores, Vice President Wendy Hamilton 

Jo Beckwith, Secretary Bonnie Sutton 

Andrea Farr Capizzi, Treasurer  
 

 
Regular Board Meeting 

Tuesday, October 15, 2024 

McCullough Board Room 
 

 
Call to Order, Roll Call, and Determination of Quorum 
President Kotsinis called the Meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

 
Trustees present: Arnold, Beckwith, Flores, Kotsinis, Hamilton and Sutton. 
Trustees absent: Farr Capizzi. 

 
Also present: Executive Director Ryan Livergood, Recording Secretary Celia G. 

Ornelas and Smruti Savarkar. 
 
 

Pledge of Allegiance 
President Kotsinis led those present in the pledge of Allegiance. 

 
 
Reading of Mission Statement 

President Kotsinis read the Mission Statement aloud. 
 
 

Public Comments, Correspondence and Communications. None. 
 

 
Consent Agenda 

a. Reports of Standing Committees: Committee of the Whole  

October 1, 2024: 
i. Finance. Report presented at the meeting. 
ii. Building and Grounds 

iii. Policy 
iv. Summary, Personnel and General 

b. Approval of Monthly Financial Statements July 2024 
c. Approval of payrolls for August and September 2024 
d. Approval of bills payable for August 2024 

75



Warren-Newport Public Library District 
Board of Trustees—Minutes of Regular Meeting 
October 15, 2024– Page 2 of 5 

e. Patron Suggestions September 2024 
f. Approval of Board Policies: 

i. 3013 Library Card 
ii. 3023 Fines and Fees 

iii. 3025 Interlibrary Loan 
iv. 4005 Volunteer 
v. Board Policies reflecting changes in the reorganization at WNPL: 

1. 3020 Circulation 
2. 3050 Meeting Rooms 
3. 3055 Display and Literature Distribution 

4. 4025 Community and Media Relations 
g. Approval of Personnel Policy 317 Life Insurance 

Trustee Arnold moved and Trustee Sutton seconded that the Consent Agenda 
be approved as presented.  
The motion carried on a voice vote. 

Absent: Farr Capizzi  
 

 
President’s Report 
President Kotsinis presented a written report in the packet. 

 
 
Reports of Other Trustees 

Vice President Flores attended the Somos, a Lake County event to help the 
Latino community connect to organizations and services that they provide. 

She also went to the 2024 ILA Annual Conference and attended Everything Old 
Is New Again: Real Talk About Public Library Building Renovations workshop. 

She gave oral information. She said she had a good experience. 
 
 

Executive Director’s Report October 2024 
Executive Director Livergood presented a written report in the packet. 
 

 
Old Business 

a. Facility Improvement Plan Overview and Next Steps. 
Executive Director Livergood presented a written report in the packet. 

Trustee Arnold moved and Secretary Beckwith seconded that the facility 

improvement plan agreement from Engberg Anderson Inc. for the amount of 
$39,220, be approved as presented. 

The motion carried on a roll call vote as follows: 
Ayes: Hamilton, Beckwith, Flores, Arnold, Sutton, Kotsinis 
Absent: Farr Capizzi 

 
 

76



Warren-Newport Public Library District 
Board of Trustees—Minutes of Regular Meeting 

September 17, 2024– Page 3 of 5 

Trustee Sutton moved and Trustee Hamilton seconded that the Board approve 
the ThirdWay, Inc. Library Master Plan Consulting contract for the amount of 

$8,500, as presented. 
The motion carried on a roll call vote as follows: 

Ayes: Hamilton, Beckwith, Flores, Arnold, Sutton, Kotsinis 
Absent: Farr Capizzi 
 

b. Book Mobile update 
Executive Director Livergood gave an oral update. 

 

 
New Business 

a. Secretary’s Report. Approval of Minutes of Public Hearing for Budget and 
Appropriation FY24-25 and Regular Meeting September 17, 2024 

Secretary Beckwith moved and President Kotsinis seconded that the Board 

approve the Minutes of Public Hearing for Budget and Appropriation FY24-25 
and Regular Meeting September 17, 2024, as presented. 

The motion carried on a roll call vote as follows: 
Ayes: Hamilton, Beckwith, Flores, Kotsinis 
Abstain: Sutton, Arnold 

Absent: Farr Capizzi 
 

b. Secretary’s Report: Approval of Minutes of Special Meeting October 8, 

2024 
Trustee Arnold moved and Trustee Hamilton seconded that the Board approve 

the Minutes of Special Meeting October 8, 2024, as presented. 
The motion carried on a roll call vote as follows: 
Ayes: Beckwith, Hamilton, Sutton, Arnold, Kotsinis 

Abstain: Flores 
Absent: Farr Capizzi 
 

c. Approval of Monthly Financial Statements for August 2024 
Secretary Beckwith moved and Vice President Flores seconded that the 

Monthly Financial Statements for August 2024 be approved as presented. 
The motion carried on a roll call vote as follows: 
Ayes: Flores, Beckwith, Sutton, Hamilton, Arnold, Kotsinis 

Absent: Farr Capizzi 
 

d. Resolution 2024/2025-2 To Determine the Estimate of Fund Needed for 
FY 2024-2025 

Trustee Sutton moved and Trustee Hamilton seconded that Resolution 

2024/2025-2 To Determine the Estimate of Funds Needed for FY 2024-2025 be 
approved as presented. 
The motion carried on a roll call vote as follows: 

Ayes: Beckwith, Hamilton, Flores, Arnold, Sutton, Kotsinis 

77



Warren-Newport Public Library District 
Board of Trustees—Minutes of Regular Meeting 
October 15, 2024– Page 4 of 5 

Absent: Farr Capizzi 
 

e. Other potentially actionable items: Agenda items for November 2024 
Regular Meeting. 

ii. Monthly Financial Statements for September 2024 
iii. Levy Ordinance 
iv. Treasurer’s Report of Annual Receipts and Disbursements 

v. Audit Report FY 2023-2024 
vi. Executive Director’s Annual Performance Evaluation review 
vii. Board Policies:  

1. 3045 The Vault 
2. 3065 Technology Use by the Public 

viii. Personnel Policies: 
1. 319 Disability Benefits Plans 
2. 601 Leaves of Absence 

3. 603 Personal Leave 
4. 605 Military Leave 

 
 
Public Forum. None. 
 

 

Announcements 
a. By the Chair: 

i. Upcoming calendar 
1. Library After Dark, October 19, 2024, 6:00 p.m. 
2. National Friends of the Library Week, October 20 – 26, 2024. 

3. Friends of the Library Meeting, Thursday, October 24, 2024, 1:00 
p.m. 

4. Friends of the Library Book Sale, Saturday, November 2, 2024, 
10:0 a.m. – 3:00 p.m. 

5. Workshop ribbon cutting ceremony for the  event, November 6, 

2024, 1:00 p.m. 
6. Filing Trustee Candidate Petitions for the Consolidated Election 

April 1, 2025, at WNPL Administration Office from, Tuesday, 

November 12 – Friday, November 15, 2024, 10:00 a.m. – 4:30 p.m., 
and last day Monday, November 18, 2024, 10:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m. 

7. Committee of the Whole, Tuesday November 12, 2024, 7:00 p.m. 
8. Regular Meeting: Tuesday, November 19, 2024, 7:00 p.m. 
9. Library Legislative Breakfast, Wednesday, December 4, 2024, 

Northbrook, Illinois. 
 

  

78



Warren-Newport Public Library District 
Board of Trustees—Minutes of Regular Meeting 

September 17, 2024– Page 5 of 5 

b. By other Trustees or Director 
Rebekah Raleigh, Director of Public Services, attended the 2024 ILA Annual 

Conference. She was pleased to learn about the building’s inclusivity and eager 
to discuss it with David Vinjamuri. 

 
 
Adjournment 

Vice President Flores moved and Trustee Arnold seconded that the meeting be 
adjourned. 
The motion carried on a voice vote. 

Absent: Farr Capizzi 
 

President Kotsinis adjourned the meeting at 7:26 p.m. 
 
 

               
Jo Beckwith, Secretary  

 
 
Approved:           

 
 
            

Celia G. Ornelas, Recording Secretary 

79



80



 

Warren-Newport Public Library District 

Board of Trustees  

Committee of the Whole Report 
 
 
 
Committee Work:         Buildings & Grounds           

 

Date: November 12 2024 

 

 

Summary:  What was discussed, reported on, accomplished? Was there consensus on a decision?  

 

1. Facilities Improvement Plan (UPDATE) 

2.  

Ryan reported that the architect for this plan was ill and had to cancel their “kick off “meeting. They will 

reschedule for some time in December. 

 

3. Bookmobile (UPDATE) 

4.  

 We have had no offers yet to purchase the Bookmobile. It was listed for sale approximately 6 weeks ago, 

with a price of $59,900. Ryan will send the Board the link to review the “For Sale” listing. 

 

 

 

Recommendation(s) for Board Action (if any), consent agenda or new business? 

 

None at this time. 

 

 

 

Tasks Pending (if any) Who – What – When: Who’s doing the task? What is it? What’s the deadline? 

 

Ryan will send the link for the sale of the Bookmobile to the Board. 

 

 

 

Agenda item(s) for next Committee of the Whole:   

 

Updates on the sale of the Bookmobile, and the possible rescheduled meeting with the architect for the Facilities 

Improvement Plan. 

 

 

Submitted by/date: 

 

November 13, 2024 

Bonnie Sutton  

Building and Grounds Chair 

 

 

 

 

 

81



 

Warren-Newport Public Library District 

Board of Trustees  

Committee of the Whole Report 
 
 
 
Committee Work:  Policy 

 

Date:   Tuesday, November 12, 2024 

 

 

Summary:  What was discussed, reported on, accomplished? Was there consensus on a decision?  

 

3023, Fines and Fees – minor edits reviewed, consensus 

3045, The Vault – minor edits reviewed, agreed to revert to grade 6 – 12 wording (not specific ages), consensus 

3063, Unattended Children – agreed to remove reference to bookmobile, consensus 

3065, Technology Use by the Public – minor edits reviewed, consensus 

3062, Security Cameras – creation of new policy.  Multiple edits discussed, will push to December CW. 

 

Recommendation(s) for Board Action (if any), consent agenda or new business? 

 

3023, Fines and Fees – consent agenda 

3045, The Vault – consent agenda 

3063, Unattended Children – consent agenda 

3065, Technology Use by the Public – consent agenda 

 

Tasks Pending (if any) Who – What – When: Who’s doing the task? What is it? What’s the deadline? 

 

None 

 

 

Agenda item(s) for next Committee of the Whole:   

 

3062, Security Cameras 

 

Submitted by/date:  

 

Katherine Arnold, Policy Chair 

November 13, 2024 

82



 

Warren-Newport Public Library District 

Board of Trustees  

Committee of the Whole Report 

Summary, Personnel, and General 
 

 

Date, and Location:   November 12, 2024, McCullough Board Room 

 

Members Attending: Jo Beckwith, George Kotsinis, Celeste Flores, Andrea Farr Capizzi, Bonnie Sutton, 

Katherine Arnold, Ryan Livergood 

 

 

Members Absent:  Wendy Hamilton 

 

 

Also Attending: Kathie Fifer, Rebekah Raleigh, and Kerry Eagar 

 

Overall Summary:   

The meeting was called to order at 7:02 p.m.  

 

Committee of the Whole included: Finance, Buildings and Grounds, Policy, Personnel, and General topics. Reports 

of each area follow. Trustee Beckwith moved, and Trustee Flores seconded to adjourn the meeting. The motion 

carried on a voice vote. Committee of the Whole adjourned at 7:52 p.m. 

 

Personnel Topics:  What was discussed, reported on, accomplished? Was there consensus on a decision? 

 

319 Disability Benefits Plans 

The Board discussed the proposed changes to Policy 319- Disability Benefits Plans. Proposed changes are editorial 

in nature and do not impact the substance of the policy. - Consent 

 

General Topics:  What was discussed, reported on, accomplished? Was there consensus on a decision? 

 

Executive Director’s Annual Performance Evaluation timeline 

The Board discussed the proposed timeline for the annual performance evaluation. The plan is to complete the 

individual responses ahead of the next Board meeting and discuss the results during a closed session within the 

November regular meeting. 

 

New WNPL website update 

Ryan presented the Board with a status update on the website update. Contract negotiations are still ongoing. 

 

Board training and self-development (Ready, Set, Advocate Module Three, Part 1) 

Ryan led the Board through a review of the training content. 

 

Recommendation(s) for Board Action (if any), consent agenda or new business? 

Approval of September Financial Statements 

 

Tasks Pending (if any) Who – What – When: Who’s doing the task? What is it? What’s the deadline? 

 

Personnel and General Agenda item(s) for next Committee of the Whole:   

TBD 

 

George Kotsinis, President 

Date November 15, 2024 

83



Good morning,

Attached is the annual levy ordinance for FY 2024/2025. Here is a brief overview:

• What is the purpose? This is amount of taxes to be levied in the library district. It 
directs Lake County what taxes to levy, collect, and deposit on behalf of the library 
district. This tax revenue is approximately 93% of our budget. 

• How is the amount determined? The base of taxation is the equalized assessed 
valuation (EAV), which is the worth of all the property in the library district. 
However, there is a limit on how much the district can raise in taxes that can work 
to counteract tax rates if EAV were to dramatically increase. That is the Property 
Tax Extension Limitation Law (PTELL), popularly known as the tax cap. Counties 
in Illinois have the option to abide by this law, and Lake County has taken that 
option, so the PTELL applies to our library district. This law states that the district 
can only be extended, that is, receive, taxes no more than 5% or the Consumer 
Price Index (CPI) over what it received last year, whichever figure is lower. This 
year, the CPI is 3.4%. Our intention is to levy $7,519,479 which will allow us to 
capture all funds available to us (i.e., 3.4% plus new growth. Remember, due to 
PTELL, we are capped at 3.4% plus new growth). 

Thanks,
Ryan

Ryan Livergood
Executive Director
Warren-Newport Public Library District
224 N. O’Plaine Road
Gurnee, IL 60031
847-244-5150 ext. 3008
rlivergood@wnpl.info

Board packet November 19, 2024: Ordinance 2024/2025-5 
Annual Levy Ordinance for FY 24-25
Friday, November 15, 2024 12:10 PM

      

84

mailto:rlivergood@wnpl.info


WARREN-NEWPORT PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT 

LAKE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

Ordinance 2024/2025-5 Annual Tax Levy 2024-2025 

Warren-Newport Public Library District 

Lake County, Illinois 

Page 1 of 3 

ORDINANCE 2024/2025-5 

 

  Ordinance Levying and assessing property tax for the  

Warren-Newport Public Library District of the County of Lake, 

State of Illinois, for the Fiscal Year Beginning  

July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025 

 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES OF THE 

WARREN-NEWPORT PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT, LAKE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

(The "District"): 

 

SECTION 1.  Pursuant to 75 ILCS 16/30-85, the District hereby finds and declares that there 

will be required to be raised by general taxation the amounts hereinafter set forth to be levied and 

assessed upon and against all taxable property in said District according to the full fair value as 

established and ascertained for State and County purposes, in order to meet and defray all the 

necessary expenses and liabilities of the District.  The Annual Budget and Appropriations 

Ordinance of the District for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024, and ending June 30, 2025, 

which was passed on the 17th day of September 2024, and published in a newspaper of general 

circulation within this District on the 26th day of September 2024, is hereby incorporated into 

this Ordinance as if fully set forth herein. The amounts required to defray the necessary expenses 

and liabilities of the District are itemized and needed for uses and purposes as follows, to wit: 
 

     

I.  CORPORATE (GENERAL LIBRARY FUND) 

    (Pursuant to 75 ILCS 16/35-5) 

PERSONNEL  

  Payroll $3,781,729 

  Employee benefits $375,000 

  

OPERATING EXPENSES  

 Program Expenses $57,000 

 Professional Fees $265,000 

 Library Supplies $350,000 

 Cleaning Services $110,000 

 Utilities $80,000 

 Staff Costs $60,000 

 Printing  $70,000 

 Equipment Maintenance and Supplies $40,000 

 Public Service and Works $50,000 

 Electronic Services $28,000 

 Contingency $0 

  

LIBRARY MATERIALS   

Printed Material $265,000 

Audio-Visual $97,000 

Electronic Databases $353,000 

 Shipping Costs – Materials $2,500 

  

CAPITAL PROJECTS, EQUIPMENT & 

FURNITURE 
$55,000 

  

BUILDING- DEBT SERVICE (BONDS)1 $650,250 

  

TOTAL CORPORATE LEVY $6,689,479 

  

 
1 See Courtesy Notes to County Clerk. 

85



Ordinance 2024/2024-5 Annual Tax Levy 2024-2025 

Warren-Newport Public Library District 

Lake County, Illinois 

Page 2 of 3 

   

III. FICA FUND (Pursuant to 40 ILCS 5/21-101 et seq.) 

F.I.C.A. Expense $260,000 

  

TOTAL LEVY FOR FICA (Special Tax) $260,000 

 

 

IV.  PUBLIC LIABILITY FUND (Special Tax) 

     (Pursuant to 745 ILCS 10/9-101 et seq.) 

Payroll $125,900 

Liability Insurance $38,000 

Worker's Compensation  $12,000 

State Unemployment  $3,000 

Errors & Omissions  $2,000 

Joint Self Insurance Pool $0 

Treasurers Bonds $3,000 

Notary E & O Bonds $0 

Security Equipment and Supplies $1,000 

Staff Costs $100 

  

TOTAL LEVY FOR PUBLIC LIABILITY $185,000 

 

 

V.  AUDIT FUND  (Pursuant to 50 ILCS) (Special Tax) 

Audit Fees $0 

TOTAL LEVY FOR AUDIT $0 

 

       

VI. IMRF FUND (Pursuant to 40 ILCS 5/7-101 et seq.) 

Pension Expense       $200,000 

  

TOTAL LEVY FOR IMRF (Special Tax) $200,000 

 

 

VII.  DEBT SERVICE (BONDS)2 $0 

 

 

 

 

 
2See courtesy notes to County Clerk.  

II. BUILDING AND MAINTENANCE FUND 

      (Pursuant to 75 ILCS 16/35-5) (Special Tax) 

Program Expenses $0 

Professional Fees $0 

Library Supplies $15,000 

Cleaning Services $0 

Utilities $50,000 

Staff Costs $0 

Printing $0 

Equipment Maintenance and Supplies $5,000 

Public Service and Works $115,000 

Electronic Services $0 

Contingency $0 

  

  

TOTAL LEVY FOR BUILDING AND 

MAINTENANCE (Special Tax) 
$185,000 

 

 

 

 

86



Ordinance 2024/2024-5 Annual Tax Levy 2024-2025 

Warren-Newport Public Library District 

Lake County, Illinois 

Page 3 of 3 

The aggregate sum of $7,519,479 is to be raised by taxation and levied and assessed upon and 

against all taxable property in said District for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024, and ending 

June 30, 2025, in order to meet and defray all the necessary expenses and liabilities of the 

District. 

SECTION 2.  The Secretary of the District shall file with the County Clerk of Lake County, 

Illinois, a certified copy of this Ordinance no later than the last Tuesday of December 2024. 

SECTION 3.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after it is passed. 

PASSED by the Board of Library Trustees of the Warren-Newport Public Library District, Lake 

County, Illinois, on the 19th day of November 2024 by a vote as follows: 

November 19, 2024 

November 20, 2024 

George Kotsinis, President 

AYES:  

NAYS:  

ABSENT OR ABSTAIN:   

EFFECTIVE DATE: 

DATE OF POSTING: 

ATTEST: Board of Library Trustees of the  

Warren-Newport Public Library District 

Jo Beckwith, Secretary 

Board of Library Trustees of the  

Warren-Newport Public Library District 

(SEAL) 

 COURTESY NOTES TO COUNTY CLERK 

• A special tax levy for Debt Service (Bonds) was authorized by the Library District’s Ordinance 2019/2020-

4 filed with the County Clerk on October 9, 2019 (General Obligation Refunding Bonds Alternate Revenue

Source, Series 2019), $5,135,000, dated October 8, 2019.

• The District intends to adopt and file each year an Ordinance to abate this special tax levy.

• Payment for Debt Service (Bonds) will be made from Corporate Fund revenue.

SUMMARY OF LEVY BY FUNDS: 2024 LEVY 

I. CORPORATE $6,689,479 

II. BUILDING AND MAINTENANCE $185,000 

III. FICA $260,000 

IV. PUBLIC LIABILITY $185,000 

V. AUDIT $0 

VI. IMRF $200,000 

VII. DEBT SERVICE (BONDS) $0 

GRAND TOTAL $7,519,479 

87


	Agenda for Regular Meeting November 19 2024 Final.pdf
	Presentation of Audited Financial Statements by ATA Group.pdf
	Presentation of Audited Financial Statements by ATA Group.pdf
	24-WNPLD SAS114-Final.pdf
	24-WNPLD FS-Final.pdf

	Patron Suggestions October 2024 Final.pdf
	Board Policies.pdf
	3023 Fines and Fees November 2024 final.pdf
	3045 The Vault November 2024 final.pdf
	3063 Unattended Children November 2024 final.pdf
	3065 Technology Use by the Public November 2024 final.pdf

	Personnel Policy 319 Disability Benefits Plans.pdf
	President's Report - November 2024.pdf
	Executive Director's Report November 19 2024.pdf
	Executive Director's Report November 19 2024.pdf
	December 2024 - November 2025.pdf

	WNPL website update.pdf
	WNPL Strategic Marketing Plan.pdf
	WNPL Strategic Marketing Plan.pdf
	WNPL Strategic Marketing Plan - REV 11-13-24.pdf

	Minutes Regular Meeting October 15 2024 Final.pdf
	Committe of the Whole November 12 2024 Reports.pdf
	CW Finance Report Nov 2024.pdf
	CW B & G Report November 2024.pdf
	CW Policy Report Nov 2024.pdf
	CW Summary Personnel General Report November 2024.pdf

	Ordinance 20242025-5 Annual Levy Ordinance for FY 24-25.pdf
	Ordinance 20242025-5 Annual Levy Ordinance for FY 24-25.pdf
	Ordinance 2024-2025-5 Annual Tax Levy 2024-2025 Final .pdf




